31st March 2022

#### TO ALL MEMBERS OF DONEGAL COUNTY COUNCIL

The Adjourned March Meeting of Donegal County Council, will take place on Wednesday 6<sup>th</sup> April 2022 at 2.00pm in the Aura Leisure Centre, Sallaghagrane, Letterkenny to consider the unfinished business listed below:

Items: 1 - 41

Documents can be accessed in the current meeting folder on eCouncil.

If you require an online link for the meeting please contact Anne Marie Crawford, Council Secretariat (<u>ACRAWFOR@donegalcoco.ie</u>) on or before 12.30pm on Tuesday 5<sup>th</sup> April, 2022.

Liam Ward
Meetings Administrator

### MINUTES OF THE ADJOURNED MARCH MEETING OF DONEGAL COUNTY COUNCIL HELD ON 6<sup>th</sup> APRIL 2022

#### C/87/22 MEMBERS PRESENT

Cllrs J Murray, Cathaoirleach, L Blaney, K Bradley, P Canning, T Conaghan, D Coyle, G Crawford, N Crossan, T Crossan, A Doherty, G Doherty, L Doherty, R Donaghey, M Harley, N Jordan, D M Kelly M Mc Bride, M Mc Clafferty, N Mc Garvey, M Mc Mahon, G Mc Monagle, M Naughton, J O' Donnell, J S Ó'Fearraigh, and B Sweeny.
Online: M Farren, M T Gallagher, J Kavanagh, N Kennedy, M C Mac Giolla Easbuig, M McDermott, I Mc Garvey, P Mc Gowan, J Mc Guinness, & A Molloy.

#### C/88/22 OFFICIALS IN ATTENDANCE

John Mc Laughlin, Chief Executive, Patsy Lafferty, Director of Housing, Corporate and Cultural Services / Meetings Administrator, Richard Gibson, Head of Finance, Bryan Cannon, A/Director of Roads & Transportation, Liam Ward, Director of Community Development & Planning Services, Con Mc Laughlin, A/Director of Water & Environment, Garry Martin, Director Economic Development, Information Systems & Emergency Services, Paul Christy, Senior Executive Planner, Frank Sweeney, Senior Executive Planner, Frances Friel, Communications Officer, William Colvin, Assistant Communications Officer, Seán O' Daimhin, Rannog na Gaeltachta, Róise Ní Laifeartaigh, Rannóg na Gaeilge, Anne Marie Crawford, Staff Officer.

### C/89/22 MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF DONEGAL COUNTY COUNCIL HELD ON THE 31<sup>ST</sup> JANUARY 2022

On the proposal of Cllr Crawford seconded by Cllr Canning the minutes of the meeting of Donegal County Council held on the 31<sup>st</sup> January 2022 were adopted.

### C/90/22 MINUTES OF THE ADJOURNED MEETING OF DONEGAL COUNTY COUNCIL HELD ON THE 7<sup>TH</sup> FEBRUARY 2022

On the proposal of Cllr Mc Monagle, seconded by Cllr Sweeney the minutes of the adjourned meeting of Donegal County Council held on the 7<sup>th</sup> February 2022 were adopted.

### C/91/22 MINUTES OF THE ADJOURNED MEETING OF DONEGAL COUNTY COUNCIL HELD ON THE 21<sup>ST</sup> FEBRUARY 2022

On the proposal of Cllr Coyle, seconded by Cllr L Doherty the minutes of the adjourned meeting of Donegal County Council held on the 21<sup>st</sup> February 2022 were adopted.

Cllr A Doherty was informed that details in respect of the Working Group on Constitutional Change would be included on the agenda for the May Council Meeting.

### C/92/22 MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF DONEGAL COUNTY COUNCIL HELD ON THE 24<sup>TH</sup> FEBRUARY 2022

On the proposal of Cllr Jordan, seconded by N McGarvey the minutes of the Special Meeting of Donegal County Council held on the 24<sup>th</sup> February 2022 were adopted.

### C/93/22 MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF DONEGAL COUNTY COUNCIL (MICA) HELD ON THE 24<sup>TH</sup> FEBRUARY 2022

On the proposal of Cllr McMonagle, seconded by Cllr Bradley the minutes of the Special Meeting of Donegal County Council held on the 24<sup>th</sup> February 2022 were adopted.

### C/94/22 DISPOSAL OF A RURAL COTTAGE AT BALLINACARRICK, BALLINTRA TO MR JOHN GERARD MC GRORY

Members considered the report circulated with the agenda in relation to the above.

On the proposal of Cllr Jordan, seconded by Cllr Sweeny, it was resolved to dispose of a rural cottage at Ballinacarrick, Ballintra to Mr John Gerard McGrory in accordance with the provisions of Section 211 of the Planning & Development Act, 2000 (as amended) and under Section 183 of the Local Government Act 2001, (as amended).

### C/95/22 <u>DISPOSAL OF LAND AT STRANORLAR BY WAY OF LEASE TO SEÁN</u> MACCUMHAILLS GAA CLUB, BALLYBOFEY

Members considered the report circulated with the agenda in relation to the above.

On the proposal of Cllr G Doherty, seconded by Cllr Harley, it was resolved to dispose of land at Stranorlar by way of lease to Seán Mac Cumhaills GAA Club, Ballybofey in accordance with the provisions of Section 211 of the Planning & Development Act, 2000 (as amended) and under Section 183 of the Local Government Act 2001, (as amended).

### C//9622 DISPOSAL OF LAND AT BALLYBOE PARK, GLENCAR, LETTERKENNY TO BALLYBOE INVESTMENT LTD

Members considered the report circulated with the agenda in relation to the above.

On the proposal of Cllr Coyle, seconded by Cllr Kavanagh, it was resolved to dispose of land at Ballyboe Park, Glencar, Letterkenny to Ballyboe Investment Ltd in accordance with the provisions of Section 211 of the Planning & Development Act, 2000 (as amended) and under Section 183 of the Local Government Act 2001, (as amended).

Responding to a query from Cllr Kavanagh it was confirmed that amended

plans outlining the additional lands added could be circulated to members

# C/97/22 APPROVAL OF WORKS IN RESPECT OF A BRING BANK FACILITY FOR RECYCLING GLASS, CANS, TEXTILES TOGETHER WITH STORAGE FOR WASTE PREVENTION AND MANAGEMENT WITH APPROPRIATE ACCESS FOR PARKING, SIGNAGE AND FENCING AT UDARAS NA GAELTACHTA, DERRYBEG INDUSTRIAL ESTATE Members considered the report circulated with the agenda in relation to

the above.

were approved.

On the proposal of Cllr O 'Fearraigh, seconded by Cllr Jordan, works in respect of a bring bank facility for recycling glass, cans, textiles together with storage for waste prevention and management with appropriate access for parking, signage and fencing at Udarás Na Gaeltachta, Derrybeg Industrial Estate including all associated site development works under Part XI of the Planning & Development Act, 2000 (as amended) and Part 8 of the Planning & Development Regulations 2001(as amended)

# C/98/22 APPROVAL OF WORKS IN RESPECT OF THE CONSTRUCTION OF NEW PUBLIC REALM ENVIRONMENTS AT GAMBLE'S SQUARE, MARKET CROSS AND THE QUAYS, RAMELTON

Members considered the report circulated with the agenda in relation to the above.

On the proposal of Cllr Sweeny, seconded by Cllr O'Donnell, the construction of new public realm environments at Gamble's Square, Market Cross, Market Square and the Quays, Ramelton with reprioritisation for pedestrian use, inclusive of new surface material together with modified footpaths, new crossing arrangements, new street furniture including new public seating and new public art and signage, enhancement to public lighting, drainage and utilities, connection to services and landscaping within the overall development area and including Shore Road, Castle Street and Bridge Street, Ramelton under Part XI of the Planning & Development Act, 2000 (as amended) and Part 8 of the Planning & Development Regulations 2001 (as amended) was approved.

### C/99/22 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR TO THE HOUSING & CORPORATE STRATEGIC POLICY COMMITTEE

On the proposal of Cllr Harley, seconded by Cllr Sweeny, it was resolved that Cllr Mc Guinness be appointed chair of the Housing & Corporate Strategic Policy Committee.

### C/100/22 FILLING OF CASUAL VACANCY ON COISTE NA GAEILGE ARISING FROM THE RESIGNATION OF CLLR MICHAEL MC CLAFFERTY

It was unanimously agreed to defer the matter to the next meeting of Council.

### C/101/22 FILLING OF CASUAL VACANCY ON COISTE NA GAEILGE ARISING FROM THE RESIGNATION OF CLLR FRANK MC BREARTY

It was unanimously agreed to defer the matter to the next meeting of Council.

### C/102/22 CASUAL VACANCY ON THE BREXIT COMMITTEE ARISING FROM THE RESIGNATION OF CLLR FRANK MC BREARTY

It was unanimously agreed to defer the matter to the next meeting of Council.

# C/103/22 FILLING OF CASUAL VACANCY ON THE COUNTY DONEGAL HERITAGE FORUM ARISING FROM THE RESIGNATION OF CLLR MARTIN FARREN

It was unanimously agreed to defer the matter to the next meeting of Council.

# C/104/22 FILLING OF CASUAL VACANCY ON THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, ENTERPRISE AND EMERGENCY STRATEGIC POLICY COMMMITTEE ARISING FROM THE RESIGNATION OF CLLR GARY DOHERTY

On the proposal of Cllr G Doherty, seconded by Cllr Jordan it was resolved that Cllr Mc Mahon fill the casual vacancy on the Economic Development, Enterprise & Emergency Strategic Development arising from the resignation of Cllr G Doherty.

# C/105/22 FILLING OF CASUAL VACANCY ON THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, ENTERPRISE AND EMERGENCY STRATEGIC POLICY COMMMITTEE ARISING FROM THE RESIGNATION OF CLLR MARIE T GALLAGHER

It was unanimously agreed to defer the matter to the next meeting of Council.

### C/106/22 FILLING OF VACANCY ON THE CLIMATE ACTION & ENVIRONMENT STRATEGIC POLICY COMMMITTEE

It was unanimously agreed to defer the matter to the next meeting of Council.

#### C/107/22 DONEGAL COUNTY COUNCIL ISLANDS COMMITTEE

Members considered the report circulated with the agenda in relation to the above.

It was clarified that the Inis Oirthir representative was Dinny Mc Cullough and that the representative for Rutland/ Inis Mhic an Dhoirn was F. Laird

Dinsmore who had replaced Rosaleen Mc Shane. Clarification was also provided that Johnny Rodgers was now the representative for Iniscaorach replacing Hughie Gallagher.

Cllr O' Fearraigh queried if the resignations had been submitted in writing.

## C/108/22 FILLING OF CASUAL VACANCY ON THE NORTH WEST REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT GROUP ARISING FROM THE RESIGNATION OF CLLR FARREN

On the proposal of Cllr O' Donnell, seconded by Cllr O' Fearraigh it was resolved that Cllr N Crossan fill the casual vacancy on the North West Regional Development Group arising from the resignation of Cllr Farren.

## C/109/22 FILLING OF CASUAL VACANCY ON DONEGAL LOCAL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LTD ARISING FROM THE RESIGNATION OF CLLR BRADLEY

On the proposal of Cllr Bradley, seconded by Cllr N Crossan it was resolved that Cllr O' Donnell fill the casual vacancy on Donegal Local Development Company Ltd arising from the resignation of Cllr Bradley.

Cllr N Crossan was informed that the vacancies as listed were member's positions.

### C/110/22 PURCHASE OF FIVE HOUSES IN BUNCRANA – FILE REVIEW BY OUTSIDE COMPANY

Members considered the report circulated with the agenda in relation to the above.

Mr Richard Gibson, Head of Finance advised that quotations had been sought from a number of audit firms regarding a review of the process involved in acquiring the five houses. He noted that some informal enquiries had bien made but no definitive submissions received to date. This, he contended, would impact on the delivery of the external review. It was acknowledged that more time would be needed if a comprehensive review was to be carried out.

Cllr Mc Monagle asked that the minutes of the recent Housing SPC meeting be circulated as there had been a comprehensive update given at the meeting, which was helpful.

Mr Patsy Lafferty, Director Housing, Corporate & Cultural Services advised that the draft minutes of the Housing, Corporate & Cultural Services SPC meeting would be considered at the forthcoming meeting and when adopted would be circulated to all members.

Cllr A Doherty said that he had previously raised a number of questions on the actions carried out after the Council received correspondence from the Department in October and signed off on the purchase on the 11<sup>th</sup> November. He proposed that a timeframe extension for the review should be allowed if required and this was seconded by Cllr Crossan.

Members proceeded to advise of the following:

- That any review carried out needed to be thorough and robust and must hold the executive and the local authority to account.
- No issue with the additional timeframes involved as long as the matter was thoroughly investigated.
- Definitive timeframe must be provided at the May Council Meeting in relation to the commencement of the investigation and the publication of the audit report.
- Answers must be provided in respect of the questions and issues raised by members during the Special Meeting on mica.
- Delay in dealing with the matter was causing problems for Inishowen members, who were having to deal with derogatory remarks and accusations of corruption on an ongoing basis.
- Call for the two members who accused the Council of corruption to provide evidence of same or failing that to issue an apology to all the members concerned and withdraw the allegations. The good name of people cannot be tarnished by unfounded malicious innuendo.

The Cathaoirleach said that in the interest of transparency, he had together with the Chief Executive written to the members concerned. One member had responded, he added, with a file received as the result of an FOI request. This file, he said, had been passed on to An Garda Siochana. He noted that the file in question had already been sent to a number of media outlets.

The Chief Executive informed members that he wanted to have the report finalised as quickly as possible and published within a dedicated timeframe. It was essential also, he added, that a competent firm were engaged to carry out the review. He confirmed an update would be given to members as soon as the relevant consultants were appointed.

In relation to the corruption allegations raised back in November, the Chief Executive indicated that he would bring a report to members, outlining the steps taken since then, letters sent out, and information received, so that members had the exact correspondence, for discussion, possibly at the May meeting.

He advised that he would arrange to include the draft minutes of the SPC Meeting in the document being prepared which would answer all questions raised by members at the Special Meeting on Mica and expected same to be circulated to members and made available on the website, early the following week.

He confirmed that both the Director of Community Development & Planning Services and himself would arrange to meet with Cllr I Mc Garvey regarding a number of historical items and that specific answers had been provided.

Cllr Mc Garvey said that he was available to discuss the matter further and highlighted specific issues with regard to the erection of a mast in Milford.

Members asked that the detail and responses on the mica issue be issued in the format of a press release when available.

### C/111/22 **2022 NON-NATIONAL ROADS BRIDGE STRENGTHENING PROGRAMME**

Members considered the report circulated with the agenda in relation to the above.

On the proposal of Cllr, A Doherty, seconded by Cllr Donaghey it was resolved to approve the 2022 Non-National Roads Bridge Strengthening Programme.

#### C/112/22 ANNUAL SERVICE DELIVERY PLAN 2022

Members considered the report circulated with the agenda in relation to the above.

On the proposal of Cllr, A Doherty, seconded by Cllr Harley it was resolved to adopt the Donegal County Council Annual Service Delivery Plan 2022 in accordance with Section 134(A) of the Local Government Act, 2001. The Chief Executive responding to a query from Cllr A Doherty, said that it would be possible to set up a small working group to look at the issues raised by Cllr Doherty and to examine current response mechanisms for dealing with member's representations.

#### C/113/22 IRRECOVERABLE RATES FOR 2021

Members considered the report circulated with the agenda in relation to the above.

On the proposal of Cllr O' Donnell, seconded by Cllr Bradley members considered and noted the report on Irrecoverable Rates for 2021.

# C/114/22 PROPOSED VARIATION TO THE COUNTY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2018-2024 (AS VARIED) IN RESPECT OF THE WIND ENERGY POLICY FRAMEWORK

Members considered the report circulated with the agenda in relation to the above.

Cllr G Doherty alluded to the previous amendment proposed by himself and seconded by Cllr Gallagher to retain the previous position i.e. that "Moderately High" and "Moderately Low" landslide susceptibility areas would be included in the "Not Normally Permissible" designation in Map 8.2.1. He referred also to the Geological Survey of Ireland National Landslide Susceptibility mapping which had ascertained that the area around Meenbog was at moderate risk of landslides, yet a major landslide in November 2020 had caused untold damage. It was important, he added, that protection for this area be enshrined in the Development Plan.

Reference was also made to the two significant amendments proposed by Cllr Gallagher in February 2022 i.e. that wind farm development should not be permitted in 4 specific areas of visual influence. On this basis, he said, he was happy to support the amendments and for the proposals to go out to public consultation.

Clarity was sought in relation to the augmentation of existing windfarms with particular reference to the Meenbog site, and the fact that serious questions now needed to be asked. It was noted that the expert analysis provided at the initial planning stage had indicated that a bog slide was a probability if the development was allowed to proceed. This Council and local residents had been ignored at the time, he added, with the terrible consequences now evident for all to see. A similar event at Derrybrien in Galway, it was acknowledged, had resulted in the decommissioning of that particular development.

Cllr Doherty asked for reassurance that the Meenbog site would not be classed as "Augmentation" when the investigation into the landslide was concluded, and that the developer would not be allowed to proceed with a massive industrial scale development on a site that is clearly not suitable for windfarm development.

Cllr Mc Bride alluding to the mapping circulated to members asked if the areas marked in red as "not permissible" were specifically for wind farm development or if there were implications for the construction of housing, farm buildings etc in the Pearl Mussel River Basin (catchment) areas.

Cllr Canning noted that it had been clarified by the Senior Planner that the protection of the Fresh water Pearl Mussel was in the context of wind farm development only and did not include other infrastructure.

Cllr Blaney said that the proposals left very little room for wind farm development in the county as a whole, and that he was fearful that the adoption of same would ultimately lead to restrictions on the building of dwelling houses, farm buildings etc in the future. He said that he was of the opinion that the proposals would be rejected by the Department and the Regulator and that inevitably they would have to be brought back to the members for amendment.

On the proposal of Cllr G Doherty, seconded by Cllr Gallagher it was resolved to approve the commencement of the statutory consultation procedure in relation to the Proposed Variation in accordance with the details set out in the recommendation and the amendments as proposed by the elected members.

#### Members advised of the following:

- That additional focus was needed on the development of renewable, offshore, and solar energy sources.
- Gweebara River Basin, Freshwater Pear Mussel Catchment areas St Johns Point and the EHSA (per Map 7.2.1 of the CDP 2018-2024 [As Varied] to be included under the "Augmentation" issue.
- Hydropower aspect should be explored. Noted the possibility of developing turbines in the sea off Killybegs.
- Self-sufficiency and sustainability key aspects going forward in terms of planning for future energy needs.

Mr Liam Ward, Director Community Development & Planning Services said that it was clear that members wanted to move forward with the issue and clarified the following:

- That there was a valid planning permission in place for the development at Meenbog and an ongoing investigation into the landslide which had not yet concluded. He said that follow-up action may be needed when the investigation was completed.
- In relation to the Fresh Pearl Water Mussel Catchment areas, the policy referred to wind farm development only.
- Alternative renewable energy sources were being looked at at national level.

Mr Paul Christy, Senior Executive Planner alluding to the recommendation on page 5 of the report Part A (1)(a) with regard to the incorporation of "Landslide Susceptibility" into the formulation of Proposed Map 8.2.1; Wind Energy noted that members had clarified that all landslide susceptibility areas i.e. "High" and "Moderately High" and "Moderately Low" would be incorporated into the "Not Normally Permissible Area".

Items 1(b) and 2(a) &(b) were generally straightforward, he added.

With regard to Part B 1(a) he said it was the Planning Services understanding that members wished to include the Gweebarra River Basin areas contained within the "Especially High Scenic Amenity" (EHSAs) on MAP 7.1.2 "Scenic Amenity"; Freshwater Pearl Mussel Catchments; and St John's Point within the "Not Normally Permissible" designation on Map 8.2.1, Wind Energy and that:

In relation to Policy E-P-23 that the following areas, items (b) to (e) are to be included also as areas not permissible for wind farm development:

- (a) The zone of visual influence of Glenveagh National Park.
- (b) The Gweebarra River Basin.
- (c) Areas contained within the "Especially High Scenic Amenity" on Map 7.1.2 "Scenic Amenity"
- (d) Freshwater Pearl Water Mussel Catchments; and
- (e) St John's Point.

Part B 1(b)(ii) in respect of the augmentation, upgrade and improvement of existing windfarms or sites with permission and the impact on the four additional areas outlined above as not permissible for wind farm development. The Planning Authority, he advised, recommended that the augmentation issue should be considered as acceptable in principle as this is consistent with the treatment of the rest of the "Not Normally Permissible" area.

Members concurred with this assessment and on the proposal of Cllr G Doherty, seconded by Cllr Gallagher it was resolved to approve the commencement of the statutory consultation procedures in respect of the Proposed Variation to the County Development Plan, 2018-2024 (As Varied) in respect of the Wind Energy Framework.

### C/115/22 APPROVAL OF THE PROPOSED DRAFT LETTERKENNY PLAN AND LOCAL TRANSPORT PLAN

Members considered the report circulated with the agenda in relation to the above.

Cllr Mc Bride proposed, seconded by Cllr Coyle the following amendment:

"That all reference to the Letterkenny 2040 Plan be removed from the proposed Letterkenny Area Plan 2021-2027 so that the 2040 Plan does not impact on any future development in the town centre".

Cllr Kavanagh proposed, seconded by Cllr Bradley and supported by Cllr I Mc Garvey the following amendment to the Draft Letterkenny Plan 2022-2028:

"That Zone A retain its current planning status so that town centre lands are available for current and future development". He alluded to the fact that flood mitigation measures could be put in place to protect any such proposals. It was essential, he added, that town centre lands were kept available for development. It was noted also that the lands in question were located in close proximity to the Atlantic Technical University and that student accommodation would be a priority going forward.

Cllr Mc Monagle proposed, seconded by Cllr Bradley the following amendment to the Draft Letterkenny Plan 2022-2028:

"That similar zoning be applied to Flood Zone A & Flood Zone B with no restrictions on development on any of the lands zoned A& B" and that any future or proposed Strategic Environmental Assessment includes all of the lands deemed as Town Centre".

He noted that Letterkenny was one of the 6 Regional areas selected under the 2040 Plan and that the ambitions were for the town to attain city status in the short term. For this reason, he said, the current zoning must be retained on town centre lands. The ambition was there, he added, to develop the town centre and enhance and drive future development. It was noted that there had been discussion with the OPW and that the CFRAMs Programme had not suggested that development could not take place, but rather that it could be accommodated with the proper flood risk mitigation works.

Cllr Bradley concurred with this assessment and said it was imperative that the current zoning designation remained.

Cllr O' Donnell proposed, seconded by Cllr Kavanagh that the lands south of the Leck Road and proposed to be zoned "Strategic Residential Reserve" be zoned the same as the lands to the north of the Leck Road where they are designated as the "South Letterkenny Strategic Development Zone".

It was vital, he added, that this designation prevailed because of the viability of the infrastructural costs of the project including the new bridge and retail centre. The development of town centre lands close to the town would, he added, be of benefit in terms of the housing need going forward.

On the proposal of Cllr Mc Bride, second by Cllr O' Donnell it was resolved to:

i. Approve the Proposed Draft Letterkenny Plan and Local Transport Plan as contained in the document submitted with this report (the

- 'Proposed Draft Plan') together with the amendments outlined above.
- ii. Authorise the Executive to further edit the approved Proposed Draft Plan where such requirements are identified and where any such edits would be non-material in nature.
- iii. Approve the formal commencement of the Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) and Appropriate Assessment (AA) processes, and completion of the Strategic Flood Risk Assessment and Traffic and Transport Assessment processes in respect of the approved Proposed Draft Plan.
- iv. Approve, subject to the outcome of the screening processes for SEA (Strategic Environmental Assessment) and AA (Appropriate Assessment), the preparation of an Environmental Report (for SEA) and Natura Impact Report (for AA)

Mr Liam Ward, Director Community & Planning, thanked members for their input and noted that considerable and open engagement had taken place in relation to the drafting of the plan. The executive had, he advised, presented the Draft Letterkenny Local Area Plan to members seeking approval to move to the next stage of the process which was the finalisation of the environmental reports. He said that the plan was not yet at the stage where it could go out to public consultation. The members, he confirmed, had an express right to make changes to the plan and based on these changes the executive would prepare the Environmental Report.

The following changes to the plan had, he confirmed, had now been proposed and seconded by the members:

- 1) All of the references to the Letterkenny 2040 Regeneration Strategy to be removed from the Letterkenny Draft Local Area Plan. He alluded to the fact that the 2040 Regeneration Strategy was not a finalised document and said that in his opinion it would be counterintuitive to proceed with the adoption of the Draft Letterkenny Area Plan without reference to the 2040 Strategy.
- 2) Flood Zone A to retain the current zoning status as per the previous Plan.
- 3) Flood Zone B to retain its existing designation.
- 4) Lands south of the river to i.e. south of the Leck Road to be zoned in a similar manner to those north of the Leck Road.

He called on members to clarify that these were the relevant amendments and said that he was of the belief that it would be incumbent on the Council at a future stage in the process to take on board the output of the Letterkenny 2040 Regeneration Strategy with the Spatial Plan for the development of Letterkenny.

Mr Paul Christy, Senior Executive Planner said that the Strategic Environmental Assessment, the Environmental Reports, Natura Impact Report and the Flood Risk Assessment Report would have to be updated on the basis of the amendments outlined above. These, he said, could give to rise issues which would have to be brought to the attention of the members at a later date.

Member's acknowledged that the outline provided by the Director of Community & Planning Services was correct.

Further clarification was provided by the Director of Service that when the amendments outlined by members were weaved into the Draft Local Area Plan the issues that arose in the Strategic Environmental Assessment, the Appropriate Assessment and the Strategic Flood Risk Assessment together with the Traffic and Transport Assessment would come back to members for consideration and when complete would go out to public consultation

#### C/116/22

# PLANNING REPORT TO MEMBERS IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 37E OF THE PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT ACT 2000 (AS AMENDED) IN RESPECT OF STRATEGIC INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT IN NORTH INISHOWEN - FUTURE ENERGY GLENARD DESIGNATED ACTIVITY COMPANY

Members considered the report circulated with the agenda in relation to the above.

Mr Liam Ward, Director Community Development & Planning Services, responding to a query from Cllr A Doherty confirmed that the deadline for submissions had passed, but that An Bord Pleanála had been contacted and confirmation received that they would accept the report and any resolutions passed by members as a result of that consideration.

It was noted that Donegal County Council as the planning authority, was obliged as a consultee on the matter to prepare a report, and include any recommendations endorsed by the members together with a record of the minute approving same.

Cllr A Doherty said that the issues highlighted in the document reflected the local community's concerns. He said that the report was comprehensive and that it was imperative that if there were implications in the future with regard to road development and any other related developments that An Bord Pleanála and the Council could add them in so as to address the relevant concerns.

It was agreed that the report as presented be submitted to An Bord Pleanála.

### C/117/22 <u>DATE FOR COUNTY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOUR-YEAR REVIEW</u> WORKSHOP

It was unanimously agreed that the workshop place on Thursday 28<sup>th</sup> April 2022 commencing at 10am in the Aura Leisure Centre.

### C/118/22 DONEGAL LOCAL COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Members considered the report circulated with the agenda in relation to the above and noted the contents of same.

### C/119/22 TO ESTABLISH AND NOMINATE MEMBERS TO THE PEACE PLUS PARTNERSHIP 2022

It was unanimously agreed to defer the matter to the May meeting to allow for further discussion on the relevant representation.

### C/120/22 TO NOTE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CORPORATE POLICY GROUP HELD ON THE 24<sup>TH</sup> JANUARY 2022.

On the proposal of Cllr Canning, seconded by Cllr Sweeny, the minutes of the meeting of the Corporate Policy Group held on the 24<sup>th</sup> January 2022 were noted.

### C/121/22 TO ENDORSE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF COISTE NA GAEILGE HELD ON 11<sup>TH</sup> FEBRUARY 2021

On the proposal of Cllr N McGarvey, seconded by Cllr T Crossan the minutes of the meeting of Coiste Na Gaeilge held on 11<sup>th</sup> February 2021 were endorsed.

#### C/122/22 ATTENDANCE AT CONFERENCE, SEMINAR OR EVENT

Having noted the revised arrangements under Section 142 5(d) of the Local Government Act, 2001, introduced by the Local Government (Expenses of Local Authority Members) Regulations 2006-2021 as amended and directives issued by the Minister in that regard, on the proposal of Cllr McMonagle, seconded by Cllr T Crossan, it was resolved to authorise any member, if he/she so wished, to attend the following conferences/ events, subject to the normal procedures:-

- i. Individual members not exceeding their annual budget for attendance at conferences.
- ii. Payment of expenses for attendance to be conditional on the member furnishing documentary evidence of attendance.
- iii. Submission of a Conference Report.

#### **Training**

- AILG Members Training Programme for 2022.
- AILG Annual Training Conference 2022 to be held from the 23<sup>rd</sup> -24<sup>th</sup> March 2022 in the Inishowen Gateway Hotel, Buncrana, Co Donegal.

#### **Conferences**

 Rural Regeneration Post Pandemic- "The Challenges and Opportunities to Unlocking our Potential" to be held from the 27<sup>th</sup> -28<sup>th</sup> April 2022 in the Abbey Hotel, Roscommon.

#### Abroad

 Attendance of the CPMR Representative at the General Assembly of the CPMR Atlantic Arc Commission to be held on the 24/25<sup>th</sup> May 2022 in St Sebastián, Spain.

### C/123/22 PURCHASE OF A ROAD LINING LORRY AND PROVISION OF TRAINING FOR STAFF

On the proposal of Cllr McMonagle, seconded by Cllr Gallagher it was resolved to adopt the following motion:

"With the increasing difficulties getting Road Lining Contractors to reline our roads after remedial and resurfacing works on our roads, I would like to propose in the interest of road safety that Donegal County Council invest in and buy a Road Lining Lorry and train up the required workers to enable us to carry out these very important safety works as and when required".

He received a response from the Director of Roads & Transportation in relation to the above.

Cllr Mc Monagle expressed concern at the delay in carrying out relining works in instances where remedial and resurfacing works had taken place. This, he said, was impacting on road users and in Letterkenny in particular it had led to the creation of an unsafe environment for drivers.

He cited the necessity of exploring options which would allow the Council buy its own road lining lorry and the use of our own workers to carry out the relevant lining works which would be cost effective in the long run.

He acknowledged that there were difficulties in sourcing road lining contractors and said that in his opinion there was a significant body of work to be undertaken.

Cllr Gallagher seconding the motion concurred with this assessment.

There was no opposition to the motion.

Mr Bryan Cannon, A/Director Roads & Transportation acknowledged the issues highlighted by Cllr Mc Monagle and said that there was a particular rationale with regards this issue and that this had been detailed in the

response. He was, he said, happy to look at any areas of concern and confirmed that the matter would be kept under review.

Concluding Cllr Mc Monagle asked that specific attention be paid to the following in and around Letterkenny:

- The many yellow boxes on back roads that had not been reinstated.
- Mini-Roundabout at Oldtown.
- Roundabout at the Circular Road.
- Road at the end of Ard O' Donnell.

He asked that every effort be made to address the situation.

### C/124/22 AMENDMENT OF THE CURRENT COUNTY DEVELOPMENT PLAN IN RELATION TO LOG CABINS AND MODULAR HOMES

On the proposal of CIIr McBride, seconded by CIIr Blaney it was resolved to adopt the following motion:

"That Donegal County Council amend the current County Development Plan allowing Log cabins and Modular Homes to be built arising from the housing crisis we are suffering, due to current building costs, Mica and the war in the Ukraine".

He received a response from the Director of Community Development and Planning Services in relation to the above.

Cllr Mc Bride said that given the current housing crisis it was imperative that consideration was given as to what could and could not be accepted going forward from a planning point of view. It was acknowledged that that log cabins could now be built to a very high standard as was evidenced in countries like Spain and in Scandinavia. These homes, he contended, were quick to build and would help get people onto the housing market.

Cllr Blaney said that it was an option worth exploring and that consideration had to be given to their suitability given the current housing crisis and the impending refugee crisis.

There was no opposition to the motion.

Mr Liam Ward, Director Community Development & Planning Services, noted that there was provision in the Local Government Planning Acts to set aside planning regulations for emergency purposes and that clarity was awaited from the Department of Housing, Planning & Local Government.

The matter was something, he advised, that could be further explored at the forthcoming workshop on the review of the County Development Plan.

He alluded also to the fact that there was provision within the current County Development Plan to respond to the need for modular homes on appropriately located and serviced lands.

### C/125/22 IMPLEMENTATION OF TAX RELIEF ON FUEL FOR THIS YEAR ENDING 2022

On the proposal of Cllr Kelly, seconded by Cllr Coyle it was resolved to adopt the following motion:

"That this Council write to Minister for Transport, Eamon Ryan requesting that a commitment be made to implement a tax relief on fuel for this year ending 2022 as a matter of urgency for all transport companies, haulage companies, and agricultural contractors please".

He received a response from the Director of Housing, Corporate & Cultural Services in relation to the above.

Cllr Kelly said that the hike on fuel costs over the past few weeks had impacted significantly on haulage companies and agricultural contractors thus creating a knock-on effect for all associated economic activities. Businesses, he advised, were struggling to survive and an element of tax relief would ensure that the local economy was protected. He noted that a recent survey had indicated that up to 95% of Bus Operators could not guarantee that they would be able to operate the School Transport Scheme up until the end of June 2022.

Cllr Coyle said that the situation was becoming particularly challenging and outlined his support for the motion.

There was no opposition to the motion.

### C/126/22 <u>DEVELOPMENT OF TOURIST FACILITY ATTRACTIONS AND</u> ACCOMMODATION AREAS

On the proposal of Cllr, I McGarvey, seconded by Cllr Blaney it was resolved to adopt the following motion:

"That Donegal County Council look at developing tourist facility attractions and accommodation areas".

He received a response from the Director of Economic Development, Information Services & Emergency Services in relation to the above.

Cllr Mc Garvey said that that he was aware of a particular instance where a family were deprived of carrying on in a tourism related business and that if there were irregularities, then the Council needed to be proactive. He asked that all options be explored and that some provision be made to

allow the business in question operate. It was imperative, he added, that there was a full enquiry to establish all relevant facts.

Cllr Blaney noted that excellent work had been done in a number of areas and cited the example of the Great Arch in Fanad. He said he looked forward to working with Cllr Mc Garvey on a number of projects going forward and helping all those involved to achieve the relevant goals.

There was no opposition to the motion.

Mr Garry Martin, Director Economic Development, Information Systems & Emergency Services noted that a comprehensive response had been provided.

### C/127/22 GEO DIRECTORY BI-ANNUAL COMMERCIAL PROPERTY REPORT Q4 2021- PILOT PROGRAMME ON TOWN REGENERATION

On the proposal of Cllr McGowan, seconded by Cllr Crawford it was resolved to adopt the following motion:

"That this Council recognising reports from Geo Directory Bi-annual Commercial Property Report Q4 2021 and earlier reports undertakes a pilot project focusing on town regeneration under the Government's "Housing for All" Programme, focusing on towns with the highest commercial vacancy rate in the county".

He received a response from the Director of Housing, Corporate and Cultural Services in relation to the above.

Cllr Mc Gowan asked that Ballybofey/Stranorlar with the highest commercial vacancy rate in the country be prioritised as a designated location for the development of a pilot programme focusing on town regeneration under the Government's "Housing for All" Programme. There were several buildings around Mc Clay's Corner, he added, which could be utilised if a pilot project was put in place.

Cllr Crawford outlined his support for the motion.

There was no opposition to the motion.

Mr Patsy Lafferty, Director Housing, Corporate & Cultural Services said that the Council would focus on the locations listed in the report with the highest vacancy rates and that options could be explored as to how such towns could be revitalised for housing, recreation and commercial purposes. The Council would be obtaining additional resources under "Housing for All" and the "Town Centre First" initiatives which would assist with this.

### C/128/22 THAT DONEGAL COUNTY COUNCIL APPLY FOR FUNDING FROM THE SHARED IRELAND FUND

On the proposal of Cllr Naughton, seconded by Cllr Coyle it was resolved to adopt the following motion:

"That Donegal County Council apply for funding from the Shared Ireland Fund to refurbish and realign strategic cross-border roads linking some of our larger towns".

He received a response from the Director of Roads & Transportation in relation to the above.

Cllr Naughton welcomed the response and said that he was firmly of the opinion that the motion was not premature and that now was the time to tap into the various elements of this funding.

Cllr Coyle supporting the motion said that it was timely given the need for infrastructural development in the county.

There was no opposition to the motion.

Mr Bryan Cannon, A/Director Roads & Transportation advised that this was an evolving area and that there would be ongoing discussion with members as the matter progressed.

#### C/129/22 UNDOCUMENTED IRISH IN AMERICA

On the proposal of Cllr Mc Mahon, seconded by Cllr Jordan it was resolved to adopt the following motion:

"That this Council ask the Department of Foreign Affairs to take a more proactive approach as regards to the Undocumented Irish in America. This has been a long-term problem and is now causing major issues for families in both Ireland and America".

He received a response from the Director of Housing, Corporate & Cultural Services in relation to the above.

Cllr Mc Mahon said that this matter had been in the public domain on numerous occasions and much work was yet to be done in terms of bringing the matter to a satisfactory conclusion. The undocumented, he said, had become increasingly isolated and had been failed over the years by the political system. A proactive approach, he contended, was needed as many of the families involved were getting on in years and this combined with covid-19 restraints on travel had made the situation particularly difficult.

The undocumented, it was acknowledged had contributed enormously to the local economy in the USA and in turn to their native localities over the years. The time was opportune, he said, to sort the issue once and for all given the current political sentiment in the USA. He said that it was imperative that the correspondence to the Minister, reflected the need to set up an All-Ireland Working Group to progress the matter. He called also for the appointment of a Special Envoy whose role would be to liaise with the relevant authorities in both jurisdictions on regularising the situation for the undocumented.

It was noted that much excellent work was taking place on the ground but political intervention was needed at this juncture. He informed members that there were over 800,000 undocumented Irish living in the USA and they were not looking for anything other than what they were entitled to.

Cllr Jordan said he was happy to second the motion and could understand the frustration that existed as there had been a lack of political will to sort the situation in both the USA and in Ireland. He applauded Cllr Mc Mahon for his efforts and his commitment over the years in documenting the plight of the undocumented.

There was no opposition to the motion.

Cllr Mc Mahon thanked members for their support and said that every effort needed to be made to endure that the matter was kept to the fore and called again on the Government to consider the appointment of a Special Envoy.

#### C/130/22 STAFF TO ASSIST WITH THE MICA APPLICATION PROCESS

On the proposal of Cllr McDermott, seconded by Cllr Murray it was resolved to adopt the following motion:

"That this Council due to the problems that people are having with the mica application process put in place staff to be available in the MDs at least 1 or 2 days a week to facilitate people with their paperwork and to upload their applications".

He received a response from the Director of Housing, Corporate & Cultural Services in relation to the above.

Cllr Mc Dermott acknowledged the efforts of the staff in the Mica Office and said that they did a great job with the resources available to them. The application process, he advised, was cumbersome and many did not have the expertise to follow-up on many of the requirements that were needed. Engineers, he added, needed to step up and ensure that applications were processed in a timely manner.

He cited the need for a collaborative team response for the various services over the coming months and that this Council as the Local Authority needed to focus on getting all the various organisations together to assist people in making and progressing their grant applications.

There was no opposition to the motion.

Mr Patsy Lafferty, Director Housing, Corporate & Cultural Services acknowledged the comments made by Cllr Mc Dermott and said that it was anticipated that the new enhanced Defective Blocks Scheme would have a much more streamlined application process. He noted that a scanning service was in place in a number of the public libraries and that this service could be utilised immediately, with assistance also available in terms of uploading the documents etc.

Cllr Mc Dermott thanked all involved for their help to date but cited the need to ensure that all available assistance was provided to help people who found themselves in this situation. The focus now, he said, must be on ensuring that there was ongoing collaboration between all the organisations involved.

### C/131/22 RESPONSIBILITIES PERTAINING TO OUR FORESHORES – SPECIAL AREAS OF CONSERVATION

On the proposal of Cllr T Crossan, seconded by Cllr A Doherty it was resolved that the motion outlined below be deferred pending clarification as to which Government Department is actually responsible for the issues raised in the motion:

"Can Donegal County Council ensure that Minister Mc Conalogue is cognisant of his responsibilities pertaining to our foreshores especially where SPAs are concerned and where Section 23 (5) of the Wildlife Act is being contravened".

# C/132/22 EXTENSION OF CLÁR AREA IN DONEGAL & INCLUSION OF ADDITIONAL ELECTOREAL DIVISIONS ENABLING COMMUNITY ACCESS TO THE RURAL INVESTMENT PROGRAMME

On the proposal of Cllr A Doherty, seconded by Cllr T Crossan it was resolved to adopt the following motion:

Extension of CLAR area in Donegal & inclusion of additional electoral divisions enabling community access to the rural investment programme. "That Donegal County Council seek from Government the inclusion of additional electoral divisions for the CLÁR (Ceantair Laga Ard-Riachtanas) programme, and that the Council executive compose for Government a report of support for the inclusion of electoral divisions presently excluded from the CLÁR programme, and that this motion is forwarded for the

attention of Minister Heather Humphreys, (Dept.of Social Protection, Community & Rural Development & the Islands) and Minister Charlie Mc Conalogue, (Dept of Agriculture, Food and the Marine)"

He received a response from the Director of Community Development & Planning Services in relation to the above.

Cllr Doherty noted that the 31st March had been the deadline for submissions under the CLÁR Programme and that for many schools and community groups this was a means of securing safety related interventions which were of benefit to the local community. He alluded to several examples in the Inishowen Municipal District where certain schools were excluded as they were not in a designated Clár area yet neighbouring schools which were strategically located were able to avail of the funding. In many instances, he said, schools had no option but to look for funding through other options such as the Member's Development Fund. He asked that the safety aspect, be highlighted and forwarded to the Minister's concerned given the lack of disposable income for many schools, and the limited resources available to the Department of Education to carry out such works.

Cllr T Crossan seconding the motion said it was very apparent that many areas in the county were suffering because of this exclusion.

There was no opposition to the motion.

Mr Liam Ward, Director Community Development & Planning Services noted that Donegal County Council had been very active and successful in securing Clár funding. He was, he confirmed happy to look at progressing some of the ideas suggested by Cllr Doherty.

### C/133/22 REPLACEMENT OF PUBLIC WATER MAINS THROUGHOUT THE COUNTY

On the proposal of Cllr Farren, seconded by Cllr McDermott it was resolved to adopt the following motion:

"I would ask that Donegal County Council engage Irish Water to invest significantly on infrastructure regarding the replacement of public water mains throughout the county".

He received a response from the Director of Water & Environment in relation to the above.

Cllr Farren highlighted the need for significant investment in water mains throughout the county and alluded to the serious problem with bursts in the Moville area. He thanked the Donegal County Council staff who carried out

remedial works but said that pipe replacement was the only solution at this juncture. The situation needed to be addressed, he added, not only for domestic users but for local industry and the tourism sector in general.

There were issues also it was acknowledged with regard to the timing of repair works over the winter period with water being switched off overnight in many instances.

He asked that Irish Water be contacted regarding these concerns and that an emphasis needs to be placed on finding adequate funding to carry out replacement works.

Cllr Mc Dermott outlined his support for the motion and said that all members could relate to the issues raised by Cllr Farren.

There was no opposition to the motion.

The Chief Executive thanked Cllr Farren for his assessment of the situation and said that the matters raised during the debate would be conveyed to Irish Water.

Concluding Cllr Farren thanked members for their support.

#### C/134/22 CATHAOIRLEACH'S BUSINESS.

Votes of Sympathy

A vote of sympathy was extended to the following:

- Marie Little, Housing, Donegal Public Service Centre on the death of her mother, Molly Mc Elhinney.
- The family of the late Sean Mc Gee, Milford Roads Division.
- Martin Mc Bride, formerly Planning Services on the death of his mother Susan Mc Bride.
- Cahir Doherty, Housing, Carndonagh on the death of his mother, Barbera Doherty.
- Patsy Mc Hugh, former Staff Welfare Officer on the death of his mother, Mary Mc Hugh.
- The family of the late Willie Browne, former Roads Service Supervisor, Stranorlar.
- Cllr Liam Doherty on the death of his father William Doherty.

Attendance at the Irish American Business Chamber Network

Ambassadors Awards on Friday 4<sup>th</sup> March In Philadelphia

The Cathaoirleach advised that he had attended the Irish American
Business Chamber Network Ambassador's awards on Friday 4<sup>th</sup> March
2022 in Philadelphia. The event he noted had provided a forum for the
exchange of information for doing business in the Greater Philadelphia

region and the island of Ireland. This provided an opportunity also to connect with a number of prominent members of the Donegal Diaspora in the US.

#### St Patrick's Day Events in the USA

The Cathaoirleach informed members that he had attended the St Patrick's Day events in Philadelphia, New York and Boston during which, he had an opportunity to meet with members of the Donegal Associations and various other groupings from the wider Diaspora. It was noted that there had been an opportunity in Philadelphia to meet with Minister Roderic O' Gorman and members from the Consul General of Ireland office. There had been an opportunity also, he added in New York to attend the Ireland's Future USA 2022 event and to attend presentations in respect of various training and development programmes at the New York Fire Department Fire Academy.

The Boston element of the trip, he noted had involved meeting with several Donegal businesses who were taking part in a trade visit to the city and participating in the Donegal Business networking event. There had also been an opportunity in Boston, he added to meet with a number of prominent political representatives.

<u>COP26 Climate Change Conference – Glasgow 8<sup>th</sup>-11<sup>th</sup> November 2021</u> The Cathaoirleach informed members that this had been an interesting and extremely worthwhile event during which he had sat in on a number of events and plenary sessions including one chaired by Alok Sharma, President of COP26.

He said that many of the sessions, he attended, had focused on transport and the need to convert to electric vehicles. He noted that Denmark was hoping to have the last combustion engineered powered car sold in 2030 and that this type of goal was something that would be particularly challenging for a rural county such as Donegal and the creation of the necessary infrastructure to allow such a change to take place.

He expressed disappointment at the lack of an Irish presence and the fact that the Government chose to be represented by the EU.

The Cathaoirleach confirmed that he had met with the AER President, Magnus Berntsson to discuss co-operation from Donegal.

### <u>LAMA Spring Training Seminar on Rural Development & the IPI Annual Planning Seminar</u>

Members were informed that details of the IPI Annual Planning Seminar and the Lama Spring Seminar had been received late for inclusion on the agenda. It was confirmed that the events would be held on the 7<sup>th</sup> and 8<sup>th</sup>

and the 11<sup>th</sup> and 12<sup>th</sup> April 2022 respectively in the Kilkenny Ormonde Hotel and the Hotel Kilkenny, College Road, Kilkenny.

It was unanimously agreed having noted the revised arrangements under Section 142 5(d) of the Local Government Act, 2001, introduced by the Local Government (Expenses of Local Authority Members) Regulations 2006-2022 as amended and directives issued by the Minister in that regard, to authorise any member, if he/she so wished, to attend the LAMA Spring Seminar on Rural Development and the IPI Annual Planning Seminar subject to the normal procedures:-

- Individual members not exceeding their annual budget for attendance at conferences.
- ii. Payment of expenses for attendance to be conditional on the member furnishing documentary evidence of attendance.
- iii. Submission of a Conference Report.

<u>Global Irish Festival Series- International Launch in New York</u>
Members were informed that Fáilte Ireland were launching the Global Ireland Festival Series 2022 in conjunction with Tourism Ireland and the Irish Consulate in New York on Wednesday 20<sup>th</sup> April.

The launch it was noted provided an opportunity to promote the activity of each of the host counties and to connect with Irish diaspora and networks to promote the Global Irish Festival Series initiative. The event it was confirmed would generate press coverage in Ireland, North America and in the UK promoting the Festival Series. Each Local Authority it was noted would have the opportunity to invite key clients to the event as guests of the local authority.

Members unanimously approved the attendance of the Cathaoirleach at the event in New York on the 20<sup>th</sup> April.

#### Association of Irish Local Government Spring Seminar

Cllr Mc Dermott thanked Cllr Nicholas Crossan for his work on the recent AILG Spring Seminar which had taken place in Buncrana. He acknowledged the excellent work that had gone into bringing the conference to Buncrana and the fact that that delegates had travelled from all over the country to attend.

Cllr Crossan was appreciative of the comments and thanked all who had contributed to the success of the event.

#### Vote of Congratulations

Congratulations was extended to Mr Noel Cunningham on becoming the 42<sup>nd</sup> Donegal Person of the Year.

Cllr Gary Doherty commended the Cathaoirleach in getting the business done at the meeting and referred to the fractious nature of the events in recent months. He proposed that the Council take whatever steps necessary to support the Cathaoirleach and Chief Executive in carrying out their roles to defend themselves and cover any costs that may be necessary in doing so. This was seconded by Cllr T Crossan.

#### C/135/22 CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S MANAGEMENT REPORT.

The Cathaoirleach's report was proposed by Cllr Harley and seconded by Cllr Donaghey.

Members noted the report and addendum circulated in relation to the above.

#### 1. Community Development & Planning Services

- A. Regeneration & Development Team Update
- B. Town & Villages Programme 2021
- C. CLÁR 2022
- D. Local Ceremony of Remembrance & Reflection

### 2. <u>Economic Development, Information Systems & Emergency Services</u>

A. Local Enterprise Week 2022

#### 3. Housing, Corporate & Cultural Services

- A. Housing
- (i) Social Houses affected by Defective Concrete Blocks
- (ii) Amended Defective Concrete Blocks Grant Scheme Regulations
- (iii) Energy Efficiency Retrofit Programme
- B. Cultural Services
- (i) Creative Ireland Programme
- (ii) Library Service
- (iii) County Donegal Heritage Office
- (iv) Colmcille 1500
- (iv) Decade of Centenaries Programme 2022

#### 4. Roads & Transportation

A. Donegal National Roads Office Update

#### 5. Water and Environment

- A. Litter and Waste Management
- (i) Recycling Centres
- (ii) National Stop Food Waste Day
- (iii) School Campaigns & Competitions
- B. Climate Action
- (i) Climate Adaptation Training Programme
- (ii) Community Climate Action Programme
- (iv) Decarbonisation Zone
- C. Coastal Management
- (i) Blue Flag Beaches
- (ii) Accessible Picnic Benches
- (iii) Conference
- (iv) Beach Maintenance
- D. Public Conveniences
- (i) 'Think Before you Flush' Campaign
- E. Rural Water Programme
- (i) County Donegal Group Water Scheme Sector
- (ii) Multi Annual Rural Water Programme 2019-2021
- (iii) Multi Annual Rural Water Programme 2022-2024

#### F. Flood Relief Schemes - Updates

The Chief Executive drew attention to the fact that additional information had been circulated in relation to the Shared Island Local Authority Development Fund and that a call would be made mid-May regarding the projects to be selected.

Responding to query from Cllr Mc Monagle, he confirmed that the Economic Development Section would co-ordinate a series of workshops prior to a decision being made so that there could be an alignment of the relevant applications.

Cllr Mc Monagle drew attention to the fact that there were reports of raw sewage leaking into the Swilly at Ramelton and that this was causing numerous problems at that location. He asked that the matter be addressed urgently.

Update were also requested in relation to the TEN-T project and the amount of monies allocated to the Glenties Municipal District for LIS works.

Cllr G Doherty commended the Cathaoirleach on the smooth running of the meeting and noted that this was due to the steps taken by both the Cathaoirleach and the Chief Executive over the past number of months.

The following questions were submitted.

### C/136/22 <u>IDENTIFICATION OF LANDS TO FACILITATE THE BUILDING OF</u> MODULAR HOMES TO ASSIST FAMILIES AFFECTED BY MICA

Cllr McMonagle submitted the following question:

Has this Council sought or identified lands to facilitate the building of Modular Homes to help and assist those families whose homes are affected by MICA and have received a demolition order?

He received a response from the Director of Housing, Corporate & Cultural Services in relation to the above.

### C/137/22 NUMBER OF ONE-OFF HOUSES BUILT IN DONEGAL IN RURAL AREAS

Cllr Coyle submitted the following question:

What number of one-off houses in rural areas have been built in Donegal in the years 2018, 2019, 2020 and 2021?

He received a response from the Director of Community Development & Planning Services in relation to the above.

### C/138/22 CURRENT SERVICE LEGAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN IRISH WATER AND DCC

Cllr McMonagle submitted the following question:

When will the current Service Level Agreement between Irish Water and Donegal County Council in relation to Staff and provision of Water Services come to an end and will it be renegotiated?

He received a response from the Director of Water & Environment in relation to the above.

#### C/139/22 PRICES BEING CHARGED BY IRISH WATER

Cllr I McGarvey submitted the following question:

Is there any prospect of Donegal County Council asking Irish Water to look at the prices being charged to applicants throughout the county?

He received a response from the Director of Water & Environment in relation to the above.

#### C/140/22 FLOOD RISK PROVISIONS COUNTY WIDE

Cllr I McGarvey submitted the following question:

What is being done in relation to flood risk provisions county-wide?

He received a response from the Director of Water & Environment in relation to the above.

### C/141/22 <u>UPDATED LIST OF ALL HOUSING REQUIRED IN EACH TOWN IN</u> DONEGAL

Cllr Harley submitted the following question:

Can you give me an updated list of all the housing required in Co Donegal with all towns listed?

He received a response from the Director of Housing, Corporate & Cultural Services in relation to the above.

# C/142/22 PLANS THAT EXIST TO GIVE HOUSING THE PRIORITY IT DESERVES BY HAVING ITS OWN DIRECTORATE WITH SEPARATE DIVISIONAL MANAGERS

Cllr McGowan submitted the following question:

What plans the Council has, to give housing the priority it deserves by having its own Directorate with separate Divisional Managers for Construction and Land Acquisition, Affected Materials Mica & Pyrrhotite affected dwellings, Housing Applications, Loans and Grants etc?

He received a response from the Director of Housing, Corporate & Cultural Services in relation to the above.

#### C/143/22 TEXT ALERT COMMITTEES

Cllr McGowan submitted the following question:

Can this Council's Joint Policing Committee write to the Minister for Justice and her Department requesting them to pay the costs of texts on behalf of Text Alert Committees?

He received a response from the Director of Community Development & Planning Services in relation to the above.

#### C/144/22 SHARED IRELAND FUND

Cllr Naughton submitted the following question:

Has Donegal County Council made any request or applied for any funding from the Shared Ireland Fund, and if so for what?

He received a response from the Director of Economic Development in relation to the above.

### C/145/22 TRAFFIC SURVEYS CARRIED OUT ON ALL CROSS- BORDER ROADS

Cllr Naughton submitted the following question:

Can I have a list of all the traffic surveys carried out on all cross-border roads and the detail of the findings in relation to same?

He received a response from the Director of Roads & Transportation in relation to the above.

#### C/146/22 HOUSING FOR ALL

Cllr A Doherty submitted the following question:

Housing for All

Are the additional personnel resources allocated to DCC in place and has the necessary repair programme of works required for the council housing stock commenced?, Also what positive housing supply role for towns will "Croi Conaithe" (Pathway 4) provide in the county?

He received a response from the Director of Housing, Corporate & Cultural Services in relation to the above.

#### C/147/22 <u>TEMPORARY ACCOMMODATION FOR MICA FAMILIES</u>

Cllr McDermott submitted the following question:

What have we done as a Council for temporary accommodation for mica families?

He received a response from the Director of Housing, Corporate & Cultural Services in relation to the above.

#### C/148/22 **S.I. HOUSES**

Cllr McDermott submitted the following question:

How much has been spent on S.I. houses in the county in the last 5 years?

He received a response from the Director of Housing, Corporate & Cultural Services in relation to the above.

#### C/149/22 FORESHORE LICENCES

Cllr T Crossan submitted the following question:

Can Minister Charlie Mc Conalogue, Minister of Agriculture, Food and the Marine, confirm the number of foreshore licences that have been issued for works carried out below the HWM on Donegal Sea Loughs and Beaches since he was appointed Minister? and also, can the Minister confirm whether Ecological or Environmental Impact Surveys were required to accompany these applications and if it is the case that no foreshore licences were issued why is it that works below the HWM continue with apparent impunity?

He received a response from the A/Director of Roads & Transportation in relation to the above.

#### C/150/22 RIGHTS OF NATURE

Cllr A Doherty submitted the following question:

Rights of Nature.

Has Donegal County Council explored and progressed this initiative, including engaging with other local authorities, (including cross border), with local stakeholders, academia etc. as promised? and will Council outline and report on county based activities planned in relation to the implementation of the "Rights of Nature" motion adopted by members?

He received a response from the Director of Water & Environment in relation to the above.

#### C/151/22 MOTIONS FROM OTHER COUNCILS/BODIES

Members noted the following motions from other Councils.

#### **BALLINAMORE MUNICIPAL DISTRICT**

"I propose that Ballinamore Municipal members write to An Taoiseach, An Tanaiste and Pacal Donohoe, Minister for Finance, to reduce the VAT rate on diesel and petrol by 50% for six months to help reduce the cost of living."

#### **CLARE COUNTY COUNCIL**

"We call on the Minister for Agriculture, Food and the Marine and the Minister for Transport to put in place a system of compensation and indemnity as a component of the licensing system for forestry. It is anticipated that this compensation fund will cover the cost of repairs and

maintenance to damage caused to the public road network by forestry planting, maintenance and harvesting.

#### **CLARE COUNTY COUNCIL**

"We further call on the Minister for Agriculture, Food and the Marine and the Minister for Transport to make it a requirement that forestry license holders – prior to commencing licenced forestry activities – consult with the relevant local authority with a view to minimizing damage to the public road network."

#### **CLARE COUNTY COUNCIL**

"I am calling on the Minister for Finance to broaden the Household Benefits Package and include exemption from property tax for those people that are under extreme pressure to meet day to day expenses in light of the rising cost of living and their struggle to survive on a very low level of income."

#### **SLIGO COUNTY COUNCIL**

That the member of Sligo County Council:

- -unequivocally supports the retention of a full-time air sea rescue service at Sligo Airport as currently provide by the crew of Rescue 118.
- -call on the Minister for Transport, Eamon Ryan TD to ensure Sligo Airport is put on a level playing field and supported with the capital investment needed in line with funding given to other airports.
- -That this motion be relayed to Leitrim County Council, Mayo County Council, Roscommon County Council, Galway County Council, Derry County Council, Donegal County Council, the Minister for Transport, Eamon Ryan TD, the Minister of State at the Department of Transport with special responsibility for International and Road Transport and Logistics, Hildegard Naughton."

#### **SLIGO COUNTY COUNCIL**

"Given that building materials and labour has gone up by than 60% on the Department of Housing, Local Government & Heritage to increase accordingly the maximum grant from €8000 to €15,000 and from €30,000 to €45,000 for housing adaption grant for people with a disability."

#### **SLIGO COUNTY COUNCIL**

"To call on the Minister for Housing, Local Government and Heritage to increase the maximum grant under the older persons grant scheme by 50% to reflect building inflation and also to increase the overall allocation to the county a pro rata amount."

#### **SLIGO COUNTY COUNCIL**

"To call on the HSE and the Department of Health to end the practice of pursuing patients, including cancer patients with private commercial debt collection agencies and to review exemptions to the inpatient charge by the Department of Health, and for this be shared with all other local authorities around the country."

#### **TIPPERARY COUNTY COUNCIL**

"That Tipperary County Council supports the "Women of Honour" campaign for a statutory Commission of Investigation into alleged issued with our Defence Forces surrounding dignity in the workplace, bullying, harassment, discrimination, assault, sexual harassment and sexual assault."

#### **KERRY COUNTY COUNCIL**

This concluded the business of the meeting.

"That Kerry County Council writes to Minister Eamon Ryan, Minister for Environment, Climate and Communications, objecting to the Bill brought forward by the Green Party in relation to the granting of planning permission for LNG infrastructure in Ireland."

The concluded the Suchrees of the meeting.	
Cathaoirleach	Dated
Cainaoirieach	Dated